From: Steve Koper

To: Luxhoj, Cindy; Erin Engman

Cc: Bateschell, Miranda

Subject: RE: RE: Basalt Creek Industrial Code Project
Date: Tuesday, January 17, 2023 12:17:30 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Hi Cindy,

Please see below for responses. We appreciate your comments; we’ll share them with our Planning
Commission and City Council. We plan to meet with our City Council at the end of February. We’'d be
happy to set up a meeting to provide you with an update on the project before we go through to
adoption if there’s interest in that.

Best,

-Steve

Steve Koper, AICP

Assistant Community Development Director
City of Tualatin | Planning Division
503.691.3028 | www.tualatinoregon.gov

From: Luxhoj, Cindy <luxhoj@ci.wilsonville.or.us>

Sent: Tuesday, January 17, 2023 10:58 AM

To: Erin Engman <eengman@tualatin.gov>

Cc: Steve Koper <skoper@tualatin.gov>; Bateschell, Miranda <bateschell@ci.wilsonville.or.us>
Subject: RE: RE: Basalt Creek Industrial Code Project

Hi Erin,
| hope you're year is off to a great start!

Thank you for sending the announcement about the Planning Commission meeting this Thursday
about the Basalt Creek Employment (BCE) Zoning District. Will the meeting be recorded and
available for viewing afterward? I’'m on vacation this Thursday and Friday, but would like to watch
the recording next week if possible.

After the open house last July, | sent you a few questions, which I've listed below. You were going to
think about them and get back to me, but | don’t recall hearing from you. | looked through the
Planning Commission packet and made some notes/revisions to my questions, but I'd appreciate
confirmation from you or any additional information you think would be helpful:
e Have you considered a form-based code for this area, such as Wilsonville has in the Coffee
Creek Industrial Area, as a means to making the area more human scale and
pedestrian/bicyclist friendly?
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o Notes:
= The scenarios appear use-based rather than form-based. Is this accurate?
RESPONSE: Yes.
= |t looks as though commercial and retail uses, as well as a mobile food unit, are
being allowed on SW Grahams Ferry Road. Is this correct? Was this
anticipated in the Basalt Creek Concept Plan for this area? If not, how are
changes in trip generation/transportation impact being addressed?
RESPONSE: Employment dense uses were envisioned in the Concept Plan. The
MP zoning code, as applied, has limits on commercial uses greater than what is
allowed under Metro’s Title 4 for employment areas. The draft code expands the
code to allow commercial uses up to those limits, but allows only some of those
uses in the Grahams Ferry Corridor.
What about a combination of zones, with lower intensity
manufacturing/warehousing/distribution next to residential areas and more intense use to
the south and west near the Basalt Creek Parkway?
o Notes:
= [t doesn’t appear this is the case; however, it looks like landscaping and
variation in setbacks are used to provide buffering and separation. Is this
accurate or is there gradation in intensity that I’'m not seeing?
RESPONSE: Yes.
Where in the analysis is trip generation considered? Manufacturing Park was the assumed
use with 725 trips (7.80 trips per acre; Table 5 of the BC Concept Plan). If a different zone is
applied to this area, how will that affect trip generation and will Tualatin still be within their
assumed portion of trips?
o Notes:
= | see that a Transportation Planning Rule Evaluation was completed in
November 2022, and there is mention of the Transportation Refinement Plan
(on page 3) in the evaluation report. However, | don’t see discussion of how a
change to the new zoning will affect the trip calculation/analysis in the
Transportation Refinement Plan. Could you provide more information about
this?
RESPONSE: The 2012 Transportation Refinement Plan was part of the Concept
Plan. The Concept Plan identified zoning designations that would apply in the
Basalt Creek Planning Area. The TPR analysis for the Comprehensive Plan
Amendments was based on planning horizon for allowed uses for the zoning
designations identified in the Concept Plan. The TPR analysis for this project will
compare reasonable worst case development scenarios for the planning horizon
for the existing MP zone with reasonable worst case development scenarios for
the planning horizon for the proposed Basalt Creek Employment (BCE) zone. Our
draft analysis concludes that the proposed BCE zone would have a slight
reduction in total trips over the planning horizon. | don’t know what the
numbers in Table 5 refer to but they don’t seem to represent the planning
period given they are so small. For example, the multifamily zoning (RH) which
allows 25 du/ac and was recently approved for 116 units says 42 trips, that is
below the built year daily PM peak hour trips for that use...



I’'m still interested in your responses.
Please let me know if you have questions or need clarification.
Thangs again,

Cindy Luxhoj AICP
Associate Planner
City of Wilsonville

503.570.1572
luxhoj@ci.wilsonville.or.us
www.ci.wilsonville.or.us

Facebook.com/CityofWilsonville
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29799 SW Town Center Loop East, Wilsonville, OR 97070

The Community Development Department has implemented a new online application and payment system. You
can now apply and pay for most applications online. You can register for and access the new system for
application and payment at https.//www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/Online-Portal. If there are additional questions, please
reach out to City staff.

Disclosure Notice: Messages to and from this e-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law.

From: Luxhoj, Cindy <luxhoj@ci.wilsonville.or.us>

Sent: Thursday, July 28, 2022 5:00 PM

To: eengman@tualatin.gov

Cc: skoper@tualatin.gov; Bateschell, Miranda <bateschell@ci.wilsonville.or.us>
Subject: RE: Basalt Creek Industrial Code Project

Hi Erin,
Here are some links to Coffee Creek standards:
e Planned Development Industrial — Regionally Significant Industrial Area Zone is Section 4.135.5
of the Code
e Coffee Creek Industrial Design Overlay District is Section 4.134 of the Code
e Coffee Creek Industrial Design Overlay District Pattern Book
e Web page with other Final Adoption Documents for the Coffee Creek Industrial Area Form-
Based Code
There are two approved projects in the Coffee Creek DOD and one more in completeness review.
Here are links to the project pages for the two approved projects:

e Black Creek Group Industrial Project

e Coffee Creek Logistics Center
Please let me know if you have questions or | can provide any other information.
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Thanks,

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

The Community Development Department has implemented a new online application and payment
system. You can now apply and pay for most applications online. You can register for and access the
new system for application and payment at https.//www.ci.wilsonville.or.us/Online-Portal. If there
are additional questions, please reach out to City staff.

Disclosure Notice: Messages to and from this e-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public
Records Law.

From: Erin Engman

Sent: Thursday, July 28, 2022 4:21 PM

To: Luxhoj, Cindy

Cc: Steve Koper

Subject: RE: Basalt Creek Industrial Code Project

[This email originated outside of the City of Wilsonville]

Hi Cindy-

It was good to see you at the open house last night! And thanks for reaching out with your
questions, which | have added to our comment record.

I’d like to spend some time on your questions, and will follow up with you soon. I'll also take a look at
the Coffee Creek area that you mentioned. Do you have particular form-based standards that have
worked well or developed examples to share?

I’'m also happy to set up a follow-up conversation. | hope your summer is going well.

Erin Engman

Senior Planner
City of Tualatin | Planning Division
503.691.3024 | www.tualatinoregon.gov

From: Luxhoj, Cindy <|uxhoj@ci.wilsonville.or.us>
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2022 6:36 PM

To: Erin Engman <eengman@tualatin.gov>
Subject: Basalt Creek Industrial Code Project

Hi Erin,

I’'m following up on tonight’s open house.
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| had some questions, but hesitated to ask. | thought they might be too specific or technical for the
audience and that it would be best to email you directly.
Here are some that came to mind during the presentation:

e Have you considered a form-based code for this area, such as Wilsonville has in the Coffee
Creek Industrial Area, as a means to making the area more human scale and
pedestrian/bicyclist friendly?

e What about a combination of zones, with lower intensity
manufacturing/warehousing/distribution next to residential areas and more intense use to
the south and west near the Basalt Creek Parkway?

e Where in the analysis is trip generation considered? Manufacturing Park was the assumed use
with 725 trips (7.80 trips per acre; Table 5 of the BC Concept Plan). If a different zone is
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
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